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1 To the Members of The Anup Engineering Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of The Anup Engineering
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2017 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow .
Statement and the Statement of Change in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. :

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind As -
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial.
- performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of

the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally- accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the

Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
- design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness-of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
_ Auditor-’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opihion on these Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. : ‘ '

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of .
the Act and the Rules made thereunder. : : :

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements. in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require .
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain -
reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

W An audit involves performing procedures: to. obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Ind AS financial statements, whether due.to fraud -or error. In.making those. risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
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~ preparation of the Ind AS financlal statements that give a true and fair view in order to
" design audit procedures that are appropriate-in the circumstances. An audit also Includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act’
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 315 March, 2017, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its

cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2016
and the transition date opening bafance sheet as at 1st April, 2015 included in these Ind AS
financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) which were audited by us, whose report for the year ended 31% March, 2016 and
31st March, 2015 dated 12% May, 2016 and 14% May, 2015 respectively expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been

audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and §egulﬁtory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

"to the extent applicable.
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we repoit that:

{a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by the
Company so far as appears frgf our examination of those books.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

U - {d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, '
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(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%
March, 2017 and taken on . record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2017 from being appointed as a director -

in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{f]  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
.. reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

. our separate Report in "Annexure B".

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
‘accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its Ind AS financial -
position in its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 25 to the financial
statements; ‘

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amount, required to be transferred, to

the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures In the Ind AS financial statements
as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
gth November, 2016 to 2¢™ December, 2016. Based on audit procedures and
relying on the management representation, we report that the disclosures are in
accordance with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced
to us by the Management — Refer Note 39 to the financial statements. '

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
10 Firm Registration No. 110417\!#

/ . _

-

" CA. Chokshi Shreyas B,

- Partner
Membership No. 100892 s

Ahmedabad
April 29, 2017
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE ANUP ENGINEERING LIMITED |

‘Referred to in paragraph 1 under the headirg “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date,

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

©(vii)

(a) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets. -

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physicaily verified by the management
during the year in accordance with-a phased programme of verification, which in our
opinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The titie deeds of immovable' properties are held in the name of the Company

As explained o us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material having regard to the size of the
Company, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account. :

The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act. Consequently, requirements of clause (ili) of paragraph 3 of the order are not

applicable.

The Company has not advanced any '»an or given any guarantee or provided any security or
made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Consequently,
requirements. of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. : '

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed .
by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or
any Court or any other Tribunal. - S :

" The provisions of maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under

sub section (1) of section 148 of tise Companies Act, 2013 mentioned in clause (vi) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. ‘ _ :

(a) The Company is generally regu!a}' in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess and other

" material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and-explanations given

to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of outstanding statutory dues were in
arrears as at March 31, 2017 fora period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amouhts payable

as on. March 31, 2017 on account > any dispute.

o




- (viii)

- (ix)
e
(xi)

(i) -

(xiiii)
(xiv)

(xv)

(inj

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks. '

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer. However, the term loans obtained during ‘the year were, prima facie, applied by the
Company for the purpose for which: they were raised, other than temporary deployment

pending application.

‘To the best of our knowledge and bef'l‘ietc and according to the information and explanations

given to us, no fraud by the Compaliy or on the Company by its officers or employees. has
been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and accprding'td the_inforfnation and explanations

_given to us, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year under

review. Consequently, requirements of Clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable. _ _

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. _Consequently,'rec{uirements of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicabte. ' ' : .

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and e details. have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

To the best of our knowledge and .belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Consequently,
requirements of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicabte.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him, :

According to the nature of the business, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of ndia Act, 1934. , S

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417\,\{#

sl (| S

' CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 100892

Ahmedabad -

April 29, 2017
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- ANNEXURE “B” YO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE ANUP ENGINEERING LIMITED

Report on the Internal F’inancial'Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) : _

‘We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The Anup
Engineering Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financiél Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential qupone_nts of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial C:ntrols over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Fin}?ncial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditini__, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
-understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. -

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial

| [f reporting.
(
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

" accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fair:» reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or-disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherenf Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Recause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud r:ay occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal -financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting .may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. ' S

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on “the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over
“Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India".

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417'E/

b el dre

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner : -
Membership No, 100892

Ahmedabad
April 29, 2017
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1. Corporate Information

Tncorporated in the year 1962 by conversion of M/s. Hind Laboratories under Chapter IX of the Companies
Act, 1956, M/s. The Anup Engineering Ltd. (Anup) is engaged in manufacturing and fabrication of process
equipments required for Chemicals, Petrochemicals, Pharmaceuticals, Fertilizers, Drugs and other allied
industries, The Company is a member of Lalbhai Group of Companies, prominent player in Textile and

Chemical Industry.

" The financial statements were anthorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
April 29, 2017.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as
issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards specified in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP”) and other relevant provision
of the Act. These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first financial statements
‘that the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to Note 36 for information of how the
transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s Balance sheet, Statement of profit &

loss and Statement of cash flow.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

o Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding

financial instruments);
¢ Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;
o Valuein Use

2.3 Rounding of amounts

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee as per the
requirement of Schedule II1.




3. Summary of Significant Accountiﬂg Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial
statements consistently to all the periods presented, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance
Sheet as at April 1, 2015 being the date of transition to Ind AS:

3.1. Current versus non-current classification

The Company pfesents assets and liabilities im the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset is current when it 1s:
o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; '
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable,
it is assumed to be twelve months.

3.2. Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated

by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors

(including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing

circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
(o results are lmown / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred

after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

s>




3.3.

3.4,

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Compauy’s functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such transaction and on
translation of monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate
are recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair vatue is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCT or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or

loss, respectively).
Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

e




"The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservabie inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for 1dentical assets or liabilities.
_.e Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value -
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

~ each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such as asset held for

sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of external
valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion with and approval by the Company’s
Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair -
value of each asset and liabilify with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is

reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the

relevant notes.
e Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
e Property, plant and cquipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date of transition

s Investment properties
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¢ Tinancial insttuments (including those carried at amortised cost)

3.5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of Property, plant and equipment are required fo be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision

are met.

The Company adjusts exchange differences arising on tramslation difference / settlement of long-term
foreign currency monetary items outstanding as at March 31, 2016, pertaining to the acquisition of a
depreciable asset, to the cost of asset and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the asset.

“Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time

to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period fill such assets are -
ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended
use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

" An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when po future economic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less residual
values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed under Part C of

. Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for Plant and Machinery other than Lab equipment and
Leasehold Improvements.

‘When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted for as
separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining useful
life of the principal assets whichever is less.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

B




3.6.

3.7,

(’\

Transition to Ind AS _
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of property, plant and equipment at
fair value as at April 1, 2015 and used that fair value as deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an

adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which

expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. -

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either

individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is maade on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
Software is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years or License Period whichever

is lower and Patent/Knowhow is amortized over its usefidl validity period of 5 years.

Transition te Ind AS
Items of Intangible assets are carried at cost eligible under Ind AS 38 less accumulated amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3.8

3.9,

Inventories

Tnventories of Raw material, Work-in-progress, Finished goods and Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. However, Raw material and other items held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cost. '

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incured in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

¢ TFinished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

" All other inventories of stores, consumables, project material at site are valued at cost or net realisable

value, whichever is less. The stock of waste is valued at net realisable value. Excise duty wherever
applicable is provided on finished goods lying within the factory and bonded warehouse at the end of the
year. Goods in transit and in Bonded Warchouse stocks are stated at actual cost up to the date of the Balance

Sheet. :

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.'
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
wnit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the
Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-

- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific

to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken info account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model-is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or

~ other avatlable fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project fiture cash flows afier the fifth year.
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Fmpairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for a property
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation,

_For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any

indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such

“indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously

recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to deterrnine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount

‘that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset

in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

3.10. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company,
the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardiess
of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its

. revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude

and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with dispatch. Revenue from export sales are
recognized on shipment basis. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable including excise duty, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts

and volume rebates.

Rendering of services
Revenue from job work services is recognized based on the services rendered in accordance with the terms

.of contracts.

Interest income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as

fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
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and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

3.11. Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finuncial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Imitial recognition and measurement of financial assets
Al financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are recognised initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.¢., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(i} Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
o Financial assets at amortised cost
o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

¢ Financial assets at amortised cost :

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold financial

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the prncipal amount
outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiwm on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and




- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
_are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding, '

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criferia, as at fair value
through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Equity instraments:

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. '

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or
The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
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party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and ither (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After imitial recognition, no reclassification is made for fimancial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

| Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management

determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in
the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period folowing the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.




The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment

classification classification

Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amorfized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new
gross carrying amount.

Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and faur
value is recognised in OCIL. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

FVOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new

amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
Consequéntly, the asset is measured as if it had atways
been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes ifs new

carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative

gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
to P&L at the reclassification date.

{v) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure;

Financial assets that are debt insfruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing component

Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing component, if the Company applies
practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money, and

All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17




The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,

. yight from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from defanlt events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting date.

FECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance

'with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),

discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity s required to consider:
o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to

the contractual ferms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L.). This amount is reflected in a separate line under
the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

o Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL
is presented as an allowance, i.¢. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount. .

e Loan commitments and financial gnarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.¢. as a liability.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: Since financial assets are already reflected at faur

value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is

presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount” in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely

basis.
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The Company does not have any puichased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets,
i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial ligbilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial
liabitities not recorded at fair value throngh profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the issue of the financial Liabilities.

The Company’s financial Habilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial labilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as

-defined by Ind-AS 109.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risks are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

s Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After imitial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR

amortisation process.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an tntegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss. '

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial Hability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.c. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

¢) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultaneously.

3.12. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hard and short-term deposits
with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term

deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the

Company’s cash management.

3.13. Exportincentives

Export Incentive
Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports

based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in recetving the same.

3.14. Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Cwrrent income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Current income tax relating 1o items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction

" either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management penodlcally evaluates positions

taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to

interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary diﬂ‘erences, except:

e When the deferved tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

s Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward

of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or lability in a transactios that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the natnre of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.c., the
period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The
Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.

3.15. Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
- All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards,
exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are recognised in the period in wh;ch the employee renders

the related service.
b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined benefit plan

The employee’s gratuity fund scheme is Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of T

the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit
plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basts.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to

Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
s The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss:
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& Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
¢ Net interest expense or income

¢} Other long term employment benefits:

The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present -
value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is
reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

3.16. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable fo ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares

into ordinary shares.

3.17. Dividend distribution

The Company recognises a Hability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the

. Company when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the

Company. As per the Companies Act, 2013, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the

- shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-
measurement recoguised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the
carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.18. Provisions

General
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of

a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted nsing a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a manufacturing facility for the production
of its goods. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the
obligation, fo the extent ascertainable, using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of
the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to
the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed
annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied

are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

3.19. Non-current assets held for sale/ distribution to owners and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will
be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of
classification.
The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets is available for immediate
sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its
sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset
to be highly probable when:
e The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,
e An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),
o The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current
fair value, : .
o The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification , and
e Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan
will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

~ Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less

costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/ distribution to owners
are not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal Company qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:
e Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
¢ Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations; or
o Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale




‘Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single
amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

- The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the

“accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

4.1, Estimates and assumption
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and -
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when

they occur.

Defined benefif plans
The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the

obligation are determined using actuarial valpations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies
of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond
with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for
quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the
discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future

inflation rates for the country.
Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 28.

Fair value measurement of financial insfruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet caunot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
> a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs

o




such as ﬁciuidjty tisk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 32 for further disclosures.

Alowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing
of the receivable balance and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of munor recetvables is
grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables
are written off when management deems them not to be collectible. The carrying amount of allowance for
doubtful debts is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016 : Rs. Nil and April 1, 2015 : Rs. Nil).

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit

will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assefs that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
fevel of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has taxable temporary difference and tax planning opportunities available that could partly
support the recognition of these credits as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company has determined
that it can recognise deferred tax assets on the tax credits carried forward..

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 24,

Intangible assefs

" Refer Note 3.7 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of Intangible assets has

been disclosed in Note 6.

‘Property, plant and equipment

Refer Note 3.5 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

- Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s

" length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The

value in use calculation is based on a IDCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restracturing activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant

* future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable

amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.




" The Anu;i' Engiueerin"g Limited.

-------Balanc'e.Sileet.as_at.M.arch..?’l»_.:_z__‘_?_l"_'.____':__' _  ' : o : L

ASSETS
I. Non-current assets "
{a) Property, plant and equipment 5 821,256,059 813,273,896 $21,016,135 %
(b} Intangible assets * 2,474,925 2,273,097 212,205
{c) Financial assets
(i) Loans 7 500,197,260 - ;
- (i) Other financial assets 7 2,027,700 2082200 2,082,200
{d) Other non-current assets 8 - - -
Total non-current assets 1,325,955,944 $17,629,193 $25,310,540
¢
11.Current assets .
() Inventories 9 218.395,565 137,608,193 156,830,510°
(b) Financial assets )
(i) Trade receivables 7 517,105,548 446,225,558 361,135,390
(if) Cash and cash equivaients 7 377,936 122,143 68,974,100
(iii) Bank balance other than (iii} above 7 16,539,445 44,965,558 28,528,276
(iv) Loans ’ 7 61,237,065 450,116,260 .
{v) Others financial assets 7 : 25,000 - -
{c) Current tax assets (net} 10 - 715,852 _.!
{d) Other current assets 2 50,819,685 29,551,251 33,088,984
864,500,244 1,119,244,817 648,557,259
.. Total current assets 864,500,244 1,119,244,817 645,557,259
'
Total Assets . 2,190,456,188 1,936.874,010 1,473.867,79%
"EQUITY AND LIABILITIES * )
Equity
Equity share capital : 1 136,000,000 34,000,000 34,000,000
Other equity 12 1,550,645.075 1,334,619,789 1,100,365,388
. Securities premium account - - 12 - 1,920 1,920
General reserve 12 - 7,003,075 7.001,075
Retained earnings : ' 2 1,550.645,075 1,327,616,794 1,093,362,393
Total equity 1,686,645;075 1,368,619,789 1,134,365,388
LIABILITIES
1. Non-current labilities
(a) Financial fiabilities
) (i) Borrowings 13 - - 318,908
(b) Long-term provisions 14 6,036,585 . 5,087,163 3,483,721
(c) Deferred iax liabilities {net) 24 174,634,763 177,093,864 178,968,010
Tatal non-current liabilities 180,671,348 152,181,027 182,770,639
I1.Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 38,992,960 161,621,218 8,502,509
(ii) Trade payables - e 13 148,570,419 C T 149,270,088 77,231,549
(i) Other financial liabilities i3 1,601,181 1,398,958 1,547,485
{b) Other curent liabilities 15 128,958,583 72,673,361 66,698,745
(¢} Short-term provisions 14 2,062,568 1,109,568 98,871
(&) Current tax liabilities (nef) 10 2,954,054 T 2,652,613
323,139,765 386,073,194 156,731,772
Total current liabilities 323,139,765 386,073,194 156,731,772
Total equity and liabilities ’ : 2,190,456,188 1,936,874,010 . 1,473.867,799
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
Far, Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chariered Accountants

Firm's Registra ionj?l()tu TW
' L«\"f - 7

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No, 100892
Place : Ahmedabad

Date : April 29, 2017

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
¢ Anup Engineering pimited

Director
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C y Secretary
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The Anup Engin'eerin'g Limited- e
~Statement of profit. and loss.for the year ended’

4

March 31, 2017

Partner .
Membership No. 100852
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : April 29, 2017

p

Income
Revenue from operations ]
Sale of Products 16 1,737,490,584 },418,382,737
Sale-of Services - _ 16 39,970,550 10,301,664
Operating Income 16 116,088,690 16,620,703
Revenue from operations 1,793,545,824 1,445,305,104
Qther income 17 60,814,980 30,501:330
Total income (I) 1,854,364,804 1,475,806,434
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and accessories consumed . 18 745,024,555 ‘ 583,773,872
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and .~ o (25,824,725} 16,268,573
stock-in-trade 19 :
Employee benefits expense 20 103,352,762 90,050,119
Finance COsts 2i 11,715,754 1,729,981
Depreciation and ameortisation expense 22 33,806,322 31,360,148
Other expenses 23 495,874,666 386,427,351
Tota) expenses (1I) 1,363,949,334- - 1,109,610,044
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (HI=1-I1)
496,415,470 366,196,390
Exceptional items [Income / (Expense)] - _
Profit before exceptional items and tax (HI=(1-11} 490,415,470 366,196,390
Exceptional items (IV} - .
Profit before tax (V) = {I[1-I¥} 490,415,470° 366,196,390
Tax expense _
Current tax 24 174,500,000 132,500,000
MAT credit utilised . - .
{Excess)/short provision related to earlier years 24 (54,790} 1,197,066
Deferred tax 24 (2,319,259) (1,832,939}
Total tax expense (VI) 172,125,951 131,864,127
Profit for thf: period (VII}= (V-¥I) 318,289,519 234,332,263
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods: :
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit 12 (404,075) (119,069}
Income tax effect 24 139,842 - 41,207
(264,233} (77,862)
o B
" Net other comprehénsive income not to be reciassified to profit or
- (264,233} (77,862)
Fotal ofher compreheﬁs_iVe income for the period, net of tax (VIH) (264,233) (77.862)
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (VII+VIII) 318,025,28‘5 234,254,401
Earning per equity share -
" Basic 30 23.40 17.23
Dituted 30 2340 17.23
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are arn integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even datc
For, Sorab S. Engineer & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants & Ahup Engineering Limited
jom's Regisfiofo. 110417W A
CA. Chokshi Skreyas B. aitman dw Rl/ Director .
v

Company Secretary




_The Anup Engineering Limited
Statement of cash flows for the yeare

A ' Opcraﬁn-g,- activities

Profit Before taxation _ 490,415,4‘7ﬂ 366,196,390
" Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: :
Depreciation /Amortization 33,806,322 31,360,143
- Interest Income {58.221,388) (24,654,577}
nterest and Other Borrowing Cost’ 11,715,754 1,729,981
Sundry Debit Written off 12,599,246 219,422
-Sundry Credit Balances Appropriated {1,339,912) (2,870,774}
- {Profit)/Loss on Sale of Tangible/Intangibic assets 95,275 248,675
_ (1,344,703) 6,032,875
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 489,070,767 372,229,265
‘Working Capital Changes: : H :
Changes in Inventories (80,787,372) 19,222,317
Changes in trade payables 640,242 - 74,909,314
Changes in other current fiabilities 56,285,222 5,974,616
Changes in other financial liabilities 202,223 (148,527)
_Changes in provisions 1,498,347 2,495,070
-Changes in trade receivabies (83,479,236) (85,309,590}
Changes in other current assets (21,268,434) 1,537,738
Changes in other financial assets ‘ 29,500 -
Changes in Other Bank Balances 28,287,843- . (16,455,558) .
Net Changes in Working Capital (98,591,665) 4.225,380
Cash Generated from Operations 396,479,100 376,454,645
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) Q 70,775,304)?3- {137,065 531)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 219,703,798 239,389:1 14
"B Cash Flow from Investing Activities )
.purchase of tangible/intangible asseis (42,897,832} (24,085,462)
Sale of tangible assets 812,244 157,986
Changes in Loans given (101,318,065) (460,116,260}
Interest [ncome - 58,221,388 24,654,577
Net cash flow from Investing Activities (85,182,265) (459,389,15%)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Changes in long term Borrowings - {318,908)
Changes in short term borrowings ) (122,628,258) 153,118,709
" interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid (11,715,754) - - (1,729,981}
_Net Cash flow from Financing Activities (134,344,012) 151,069,820
- [Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 177,521 (68,930,225)
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 200,415 69,052,370
{Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the period 377,936 122,145
Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Beeo o G Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: {Note (<)) :
Cash on Hand 67,756 64,045
Foreign Currency on Hand 74,797 58,100
Balances with Banks* 235,383 -
Cash and cash equivalents © 371,936 122,145
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes . ’
Cash and cash equivalents as restated 377,936 122,145

As per our report of even date attached
For, Sorab 8. Engineer & Co.
Firm Registration No. 110417W
Chartered Accountants

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 100892

Piace; Ahmedabad
Date : April 29. 2017
M5B

i

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
The Anup Engineering Limited

b et

airm Director
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Cormeany Secretary
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_ ‘._'l he Anup Englneermg anted

---'.“"‘Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31; 2017

A. Equity share capital

B. Other equity

{As at April 1,2015 34, 000 000
Issue of Equity Share capital -
As at March 31, 2016 34,000,000
Issue of Equity Share capital -
Bonus Share capital (3:1) 102,000,000
As at March 31,2017 136,000,000

v

Attributable to the equity holde

of the parent

Balance as at April 1, 2015 1,920 7,001,075 1,093,362,393 1,100,365,388
Profit for the period - - 234,332,263 234,332,263
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (77,862) (77,862)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - 234,254,401 234,254,401
Any other movement (edit / modify based on -
requirement) - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2016 1,920 7,001,075 1,327,616,794 T1.334,619,789
Balance as at April 1, 2016 1,920 7,001,075 1,327,616,794 1,334,619,789
 Profit for the period - ' - 318,289,519 318,289,519
Other comprehensive income for the year - (264,233) (264,233)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - 318,025,286 318,025,28’6_
Utilised for Bonus Issue (1,920) (7,001,073} (94,997,005) (102,000,000)
Any other movement (edit / modify based on - - - .
Balance as at March 31, 2017 - - 1,550,645,075 1,550,645,075 o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fin
As per our report of even date

For, Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants .
Firm's Registration No. 110417W }( :

M’ K( It~
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No. 100892

Place : Ahmedabad

Date : April 29,2017

A

ancial statements.

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of

SAnup Engineering Limited

Director

%r Cogy Secretary
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“The Aniip Engineering Limited
- Nétesto the Financial Statements -

MNote 7 : Financial assets

7 {a) Trade receivables
—

Current
Unsecured, considered good 517,105,548 446,225,558 , 361,135,390
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts - - . -
517,105,548 . 446,225,558 361,135,390
“Total Trade and other receivables 517,105,548 446,225,558 361,135,390

7 (b} Loans

Non-current

Loans to related parties 500,197,260 - L , ,
500,197,268 - -
-Current
Unisccured considered good .
Loans to related parties 61,237,065 460,115,260 -
61,237,065 460,116,260 -
Total Loans 561,434,325 460,116,260 . s

For terms & condition of foans to related party, refer Note 29.

7 (¢) Cash and cash equivalent

Balance with Bank

Currenl accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 235,383 - 68,762,436
Cash on hand 67,756 64,045 196,472
Foreign Currecy on Hand 74,797 58,100 15,192
Total cash and cash equivalents 377,936 122,145 68,974,100

7 (d) Other bank balance
5 o 7

Unpaid dividend accounts 78,2710 - 78,270 78,270
Held as Margin Money* 16,461,175 44,827,288 . 28,450,000
Total other bank balances - . 16,539,445 ) 44,205,558 . 28,528,270

* Under lign with bank as Security for Guarantee Facility

7 (e} Other financial assets

Non-current .
Security deposits 2,027,700 2,082,200 : - 2,082,200
2,027,700 2,082,200 2,082,200
Current
Security deposits 25,000 - -
25,000 - .
Tota! other financial assets 2,052,700 - ) 2,082,200 . 2,082,200

(}.

{

8




‘[March 3

1,2017
Trade receivables - - 517,105,548
Loans . - - 561,434,325
Cash & cash equivalents - - 377,936
Other bank balances - - 16,539,445
other financial assets - - 2,052,700
Fotal Financial assets - - 1,097,509,954
|March 31, 2016

Trade receivables - - 446,225,558

Loans - - 460,116,260
Cash & cash equivalents - - 122,145

Other bank balances - 44,905,558

other financial assets - - 2,082,200

Total Financial assets - - 953,451,721

April 1,2015

Trade receivables - - 361,135,390
Cash & cash equivalents - - 68,974,106
Other bank balances - - 28,528,27G
other financial assets - - 2,082,200

Total Financial assets - - 460,719,961

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and poticies, refer Note 34.
_ Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 32.

Note 8 : Other current / non-current assets

Current _
Advance to suppliers 24,606,566 8,553,189 8,445,102
_Balance with collectorate of central excise and cusfoms 10,355,004 3,843,072 13,831,003
Sales tax / VAT / service tax receivable (net) 278,030 4,301,833 3,000
Export incentive receivable 7.007,680 3,816,813 3,483,039
Prepaid expenses 2,518289 2,407,942 2,682,976
QOther Cusrent Asset 6,054,116 6,628,402 4,643,868
50,819,685 29,351,251 33,088,988

Total 50,819,685 29,551,251 33,088,988

Note 9 : Taventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials 87,076,765 36,664,841 42,281,469
Worlc-in-progress 113,543,269 §7,718,544 103,987,117
Finished goods 727,362 727362 727,362
Stores and spares 17,048,169 12,497,446 9,834,622
Total 218,395,565 137,608,193 156,830,510

Note 18 : Current Fax Assets/(Liability}

Current Tax Assets - R 715,852 -
Current Tax Liability (2,954,054} - (2,652,613)
Total (2,954,054} 7 15,852 _ (2',652,613)

On

/
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The Anup Engineerisg Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Equity share capital

Authorised share capital :

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 15,000,000 150,000,000 500,000 50,000,000 500,000 50,000,400
Issued and subseribed share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 13,600,000 136,000,000 340,000 34,000,000 340,000 34,000,000
Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 13,600,000 136,000,000 340,000 34,000,000 340,000 34,000,000
Total 13,600,000 - 136,000,000 - 340,000 34,000,000 340,000 34,000,000

"11.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting pefiod

e i 2 55 i g LRSS
At the beginning of the period 34,000,000 340,000 34,000,000 340,000 34,400,000
Add - Bonus shares issued during {he year 10,200,000 102,000,600 ) - - - -
Outstending at the ead of the period 13,600,000 136,000,600 340,000 34,000,000 349,800 34,000,008

11.2. Aggregrate number of shares alloted as fully paid-up Benus Shares (During § years immediately preceeding March 31, 2017)

During the year, the Company alloted 1,02,00,060 Bonus Equity Shares of Rs. 10 eack as fuliy paid-up.

11.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares
The Company has one class of shares referred 1o as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the

Board of Directars is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the

remaining assets of the Company after distribution of i preferentiaf amounts, in proportion to their sharehelding.

11.3. Number of Shares held by each sharcholder holding more than 5% Sharcs in the company

feen

shehe 5 e K 8
93.53% 912 . 300,000 88.24%

Arvind limited- Holding Company 12,720,640

11.4 Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 35

L“.
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The Anup Engineering Limited
Notes ta the Financial Statements

Note 12 1 Other Equity

R e

Note 12,1 Reserves & Surplus

General Teserve

Bal as per last financial . 7,001,075 7,001,675
1less: Utilized Bonus issue 7,001,075
Balance at the end of the year - 7,001,075
Securities premium account
Balance as per last financiaf statements 1,920 1,520
less: Unilized Bonus issue 1,920
Balance at the end of the year - 1,920
Surptus in statement of profit and loss
Batance as per last financial statzments !,327,6!_6,794 1,693,362,393
Add: profit for the year . 318,289,519 234,332,263
Add / (Lessy: OCI for the year (264,233 (77,862)
1,645,642,080 1,327,616,794
less: Utilized Bonus issue {94,997,005) -
Balance at the end of the year 1,550,645,075 1,327,516,794
Total resevves & surplus 1,550,645,075 1,334,619,789
Total Other equily léSOgS!D'JS 1,341,622,784

Nete 13 : Financial linbilities

13 (2): Long-term Borrawings

Long-term Borrowings
Non-current portion
Secnred

. Term loan fram Banks - 318,908
- T 318,908
Current maturifies
Secured
Term foan from Banks - 76,353
- - 76,383
Totak long-term borrowings - - 395,261
Short-term Borrowings (refer note A below}
Secured
‘Workiny Gnpital Loans repayable on demand 30,490,451 153,518,709 -
from Banks
Unsecured
Intercorporale Deposits
From Related Parttes 8,302,509 3,502,509 8.562,56%
Total shiert-term borrowings 38,992,960 161,621,218 8,502,50%
Tatal borrowings 38,992,960 . 165,621,218 3,897,770
Nature of security:

A .Cash Credit and Other Facilities from Banks
i. First charge over entire stocks, receivables and other current assets and secand charge over entire
fixed assels of the Company both present and fulre.

C"‘. : ..
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The Anup Enginecring Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Current
Other trade payable (Refer rote below) 148,570,419 149,270,089 77,231,549
148,570,419 149,270,089 T1.231.549
Total 143,570,419 149,270,083 17,231,549

o

and henee disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medi

Cther trade payables are rot-intesest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 days terms

The Company has tot received any intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the Ddir o, Small

Enterprise D

(a) Principat amount and the interest du¢ thereon remaining unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of acoounting year;

(b) Interest paid during the year;

“{c) Amount of payment made to the supplies beyond the zppointed day during accounting year;

{d) Irtecest due and payabls for the period of delay in making payment;

{e) Interest acerued and unpaid at the end of the accounting year; and

(£) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the inte:

been given.

The Company is making effons to pet the confirmations from the suppliers as ref

and Medium Enterprise Development {MSMED]} Act, 3006 ’
(MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding:

rest dugs above are sctually paid to the small enterprise. have not

rard to their status under the said Act

Curreant
Current maturity of long term borrewings - - 76,353
Payable 10 emgloyees 767,073 788,152 1,205,092
Dieposits from cusioimers and others 704.706 400,000 100,000
Unpaid dividends 78,270 78,270 782H
Other financial liabilities 51,132 132,436 87,770
Total 1,601,18F 1,398,958 1,547,485
13 (d}: Financial labilities by category X In Rs.
{Particulary FVTPL FVOCL Amortised cost
March 31, 2017
Borrowings - - 38992960
Trade payable - - 148,570,419
Other fmancial lisbilities - - 1,601,181
{Tetal Finaucial liabilities - - 189,164,560
March 31, 2016
Sorowings - - 161,621,218
Trade payable - - 149.270,089
“|O¢her Fnancial liabitities - - 1,398,958
Total Financial Habilities - - 312,290,265
Ageit 1,2015
Borrowings - - 4,821,417
Trade payable - - 77,231,549
Other financial liabilities - - 1,547,485
Total Financial liabilities - - 87,600,451

For Einancial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Nate 32 an

Note 14 : Provisions

Nor;a 34

d fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment are inNote 33.

Long-term
Provision for emyployes benefits (refer Note 28)

Pravision for leave encashment 6,036,585 5,087,163 3,483,721
6,036,585 5,087,163 3,483,721
Short-term

Provision for empoyee benelits (refer Note 18} .

" Provision for leave encashment 1,700,096 1,109,568 98,371
Provision for gratuity 362472 - -

2,062,568 1,109,568 98,871
Total 8,099,153 6,19&_‘:‘31 3,582.592

Note 15 : Other current / Non-eurreat linbilities

> Current
Advance from customers 123,210.710 70,969,340 60,634,543
Statutory dues incliding provident fund and tax deducted at 3,747374 1,704.021 6,084 202
source . o
Total 128,958,583 - 72,673361 66,698,745

W




The Anup Engincering Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

‘Note 16 : Revenue from operations

R A
Sale of products | 1,737,490,584 1,418,382,737
Sale of services 39,970,550 10,301,664
Qperating income
Waste sale 11,191,339 10,653,862
Export incentives 4,133,686 4,006,391
Testing Analysis Income 763,665 1,960,450
16,088,690 16,620,703
Total 1,793.549,824 1,445,305,104

Note 17 : Other income

Interest income 58,221,388 24,654,577
Sundry credit balances appropriated 1,339,212 2,870,774
Provision no longer required 692,662 206,917
Miscellangous income 6,963 105,638
Exchange Rate Diff (net} 554,054 2,663,424
Total 60,814,980 . 30,501,330
/{;

-




The Anup Engineering Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 18 : Cost of raw materials and componen(s consumed

Stock at the beginning of the year ) 36,664,841 42,281,409
Add ; Purchases 795,436,479 578,157,304

832,101,320 620,438,713
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 87,076,765 36,664,541
Raw materials and componenis consumed 745,024,555 583,773,872

Total 745,024,555 583,773,872

Mote 19 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Stock at the end of the year

Finished goods : ' 727,362 727,362
Work-in-Progress 113,543,269 87,718,544
114,270,631 88,445,906

- ‘Stock at the beginning of the year
_ " Finished goods 727,362 727,362
Waork-in-Progress 87,718,544 103,987,117
88,445,906 104,714,479
(Increase) / Decrease in stocks ' ' © (35824729 16,268,573
Total (25,824,725) 16,268,573

Note 20 : Employce benefits expense

‘Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. {Refer Note 28) 95,520,261 82,562,478
Contribution to provident and other funds 4,662,906 4,062,566
Welfare and training expenses 3,169,595 3,425,075
Total 103,352,762 90,050,119

Note 21 : Finance costs

Interest expense - Loans 8,931,024 256,513
Interest expense - others 365,507 48,203
Other finance cost . 2,419,223 1,425,265
Total L715754 1,729,981

Note 22 : Depreciati{m and amortization expense.

Depreciation on Tangible assets {Refer Note 3) e e e 3_2,538,150 29,547,100
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Not€6) .- - - R TR 1,268,172 - 1,813,042
Total 33,806,322 _ 31,360,148

p




‘Fhe Apup Engineering Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 23 : Other expenses =

14,770,436

Power and fuel 12,091,230
Stores-consumed 38,584,221 32,749,011
Insurance 1,001,420 685,084
Printing, stationery & communication 2,353,229 2,203,033
" Rent 957,787 1,392,601
Rates and taxes 1,113,646 1,503,480
Repairs :
To Building 9,422,600 7,320,677
To Machineries (including spares consumption) 23,585,365 17,074,724
To others 3,882,709 4,644,055
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 25,280,420 14,545,998
Excise duty expense 147,898,906 108,113,948
Legal & Professional charges 4350315 §,514,888
Interest on Income tax 1,786,489 1,650,910
Conveyance & TFravelling expense 3,418,021 4,540,807
Director's sitting fees 165,316 95,138
Job waork charges 163,366,748 136,235,439
Sundry debits written off 12,599,246 219,422
Auditor's remuneration 697,890 863,980
Bank charges 8.011,727 10,052,646
Spend on CSR activities 5,562,560 3,500,000
Loss on assets sold, demolished, discarded and scrapped 95,275 248,675
Miscellaneous expenses ‘ 7,965 AGi 6,251,034
Postage & Courier Charges 254 097 147,733
Computer Expenses 907,112 886,587
Drawing & Drafting Charges 1,399,218 772,501
Security Charges 2,401,513 1,652,174
Retainership Fees 3,936,763 3,474,900
Inspection Fees 8,937,883 3,127,950
Royalty i,168,263 8,466,706
Totat 495,874,666 386,427,351

Payment to Auditors {Net of service tax)

i
Payment to Auditors as
Auditors 450,000 415,000
For tax audit 150,000 80,000
For Other certification work ) 295,000
For reimbursement of expenses 97,890 73,980
Total 697,890 863,980

P,
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The Avnup Engineering Limited

Note 24 : Income gax
“The major component of income tax expense for the years &

nided March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 ate :

Statement of Profit and Loss
~Current tax

Current income tax 174,500,600 132,500,000

Excess/Short Provision related to earlier year (54,790} 1,197,066
Deferred tax

[eferred tax expense (2,319,259 (1,832,939)
Mat credtit entitlement
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss . 172,125,951 13i,864,127

QCI section

Statement to Other comprehénsive income (OCT)
Deferrad tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Net loss/(jzain) on actuarial gains and losses

(139,842)

(41,207)

Net gains / {loss) on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge

Deferred tax charged to OCL

(139,842)

G107

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended March 3

A} Current t2x

1, 2617 and Mareh 31, 2016,

Accounting profit before tax frem continuing operations 490485471 366,196,390
Tax (@ 34.608% (Marech 31, 2016: 34.608%) 169,722,986 126,733,247
Adjustmest
Other nen-deductible expenses 1,229,264 303,611
Other adjustments 1,033,859 4,786,662
At the effective income iax rate of 35.07% (Mafch 31, 2016 :36%) 171,986,169 131,822,920
B) Deferred tax
0
12
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (31,868,351} . (31,272,368) (29,958,964} 595,983 1,313,403
Impact of fair valuation of Assets (145,558,496) (148,066,358) (150,267.75%) (2,507,862) (2,201,401)
Expenditure altowable on payment basis 2,792,084 2,244 862 1,258,713 (547,222) (986,148}
Others : - - - - -
Deferred tax expense/(income) (2,459,101) . {1,874,146)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (174,634,763) (177,093,864) (178,968,010) (177,093,364)
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
Deferred tax assets 2,792,084 2,244 862 1,258,713
Deferred tax liabilities (177,426,847) (179,338,726) (180,226,723)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) {174,634,763) (177,093,864} (178,968,010}
Miirch 31,
March 31, 2017 2016

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets { (liabilities), net In Rs. In Rs.
Opening balance as of April 1 (177,093,864) (178,968,010}
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 2,319,259 1,832,939
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised i OCI 139,842 . 41,207

(174,634,763) (177,093,864)

Closing balance as at March 31

The Company offsets tax assets and Tiabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right fo set off cusrent tax assets and current
tax Habilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

&
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The Anop Engineering Limited _
~ Notes 1 the Firaasial Statements

Note 25 : Contingeiit liabilities

Contingent liabilities not provided for

a. Guarantees given by bank on behalf of the Company 791,892,733 . 597,536,305 411,465,725

Note 26 : Capital commitment and other commitments

Capital commitmenis
Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on -
capital account and not provided for

8,933,500 -

Note 27 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged

A. Exposure

Not Hedged

o

% =
5
Receivables Usb 1,825,583 118,389,054 1,144,047 75,798,883 58,315 3,644,631
) EUR 379,595 26,303,114 ' 24,000 1,612,560
GBP : - - - - 101,281 9,365,467
Payable to creditors usD 52,398 3,398,010 78,960 4,935,024
EURC 46,133 3,196,671

(/,A




The Anup Engineering tod
Motes 1o the Financiai Statements

Note 28 : Disclosure ...E.mzm.s io Emyployee benefits

Defined contribution plans:
Amount of R5.24,64,839/ AZEn_.—.u 1, 2016 Rs. 21,84,704/) is recognised as expenses and included in Note No. 20 "Empleyee benefit expense”

Pa / 5 : ; Y el el A AEEHIIR201E
Provident Fund ) 2,171,962 . J9B4,331
ES! : ) 170,247 100,373
Superannuaticn Fund 122,630 100,600
2,464,839 2,184,704

‘Tha Company makes Provident Fund coniributions 1o defined contribution plans for qualitying emplayees. Under the schames, the company s requived 1o contribute a speci fied percantage fo the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

B. Defined henefit plans:
The Company has fallowing post employment benafits which are in the patwee of defined benefii plans:
(#) Grituity

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitied Lo the benefit as per scheme of the Company, for each completed year of service. The same is payable on retirement or lermination whichever is
eariier. The benefit vesis only afier five years of continuous service.

M

arch 31, 2017 : Changes in defined benefi obligation and plan assels

A ity icostcharged 1o-

Gratuity .
Defined benefit obligation - 4,918,000 1,090,120 391,473 1,481,593 339,350 - - 306,200 15,11% 321,919 - 6,182,153
Fair value of plan assets {5.225,923) - -415,983 415,983 339,354 32,156 - - - 32,156 755,250 (5,319,681
Benefit liability (307,923) 1,090,120 ~24,510 1,065,610 - 52,156 - 306,800 15,19 404,075 199,250 362,472
Total beneflt liability 307,923 1,090,120 24,510 1,065,610 - 82,156 - 306,860 15,119 404,075 -799,290 362,472

March 31, 2016 : Changes in defined bengfit obligmion and plan assets

{In Rs.)

Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation 4,086,704 928,846 325,302 1,254,148 {496.331) - - - 73478 73479 - 4,918,000
Fair value of plan assels . (4.546,935) - (361,936) -361,936 496,331 45,590 - - - 45,550 -558,973. (5,225.923)
Benefit lizbility (460,231} 928,846 (36,634) 892,212 0 45,590 - - 73,479 119,069 -858,973 {307,923)
Total benefit Hability/(assct) (460,231} 918,846 (36,634) 892,212 0 45,590 0 0 73,479 119,069 (855,973) (307,923)

The major catepories of plan assets of the fair vatue of the total plan assets of Gratuity ase as follows:

Insurance find ) 100% 100% 100%:

(%) of total pian assets : 100% 100% 100%

M8




Discount rate 7.57%

. 7.96% 7.96%
| Future salary increase . 8,00% 5,00% £.00%
| Expected rate of retum on plan assets 1.57% 7.96% 7.96%
i Attrition rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
i Morality rate during employment  * Indian assured lives Morlality(2006-  Indian assured lives Morlality{2006-  Indian assured lives Monality (2006-08)
¢ Morality rate after employment N.A. N A MN.A.

A quanlitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
0..».:5.

s
nu.n.":.a..
Discount rate 1% increass -743,845 (569,358}
1% decrense 206,011 . 690,803
Salary incidase 1% increase 887,036 483,546
. 1% decrease -747,489 (573,995)
Aurition rate. 1% ingrease -58,636 (28,869)
1% decrease . 64,217 29,731

The followings.are Em nzuun_nn future benelit payments for the defined e«_._nﬂ:. plan :

A YD ,w..w.._

Gratuity
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting uwno& 453,198 623,733
Between 2 and 5 years 632,516 716,865
Beyond 5 years B . 3,554,363 2,746,208
) Total expected -.aw.n_.wﬁnnm 2,640,477 4,086,306

Gratuity 15

The mo_po:._swm are Em expected contributions to u_ﬂsﬂ assets _.2 the next year:

Gratiry

i €. Other Long term employec benefit plans
i Leaveencashment

Salaries, Wapes and Bonus include Rs.15,39,950/- {Previous Year Rs, 26, E._.u@._.v towards provisien made as per acludriat valuation in respect of accumulated lea

L

ve encashiment/compensated absences,

s




he >==w Engineering Limited
otes to the Financial Statements

ote 29 ;: Related Party Disclosure

=

As per the Indian Accounting Siandard on "Related Party Disclosures” (IND AS 24), the rejated parties of the Company are as follows :

Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

Arvind Limited

Arvind Accel Limited
Asman Investments Limited
Dholka Textile Park Pvt Ltd'

Holding Company
Feliow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

ishi Roop Kapoor, Chief Executive Officer
Shri Paresh A. Shah, Chief Financial Officer

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel

he >==_.u Engineering Limited

b ..Ummnm_om_:d in respect of Related Party Transactions :

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

a.. W.T f&s. rey

: @%,

Purchase of Goods and Materials

Arvind Limited 110,509 332,762
Remuneration
" Shri Rishi Roop Kapaor 16,840,231 11,220,983
Shri Paresh A. Shah 3,157,629 2,882,320 |
minqnﬁ Expense
‘Arvind Limited - -
H.:o_.ome Income
rvind Limited 54,371,473 21,173,976
‘Arvind Accel Limited 23,870 2,808
holka Textile Park Pvt Limited 505,480 126,370
Lean Given/(Repaid) (Net)
‘Arvind Limited 512,500,000 -}
‘ Arvind Accel Limited (10,000,000} 10,000,000
‘Dholka Textile Park Private Limited (450,000,000} 450,000,000




Fhe Anup Engineering Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Transactions

mcqommmo of Goods and Materials 110,509 332,762 -
Interest Income 54,371,473 21,173,976 529,350
Remuneration - - -
Loan! Given/(Repaid}) (Net) 512,500,000 ’ . (460,000,000)

129,178

460,000,000

19,997,860

wm_nm:nam as at year end
Loans and Advances

561,434,325 . -

460,116,260
8,502,509

8,502,509

8,502,509

Boitowings - .. -

¢ Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

1) Transaction entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Qutstanding balances other than loan given & taken and fair value

of mﬁmzn._m_ guarantee contract, at the year-end are unsecure and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

2 ﬁomum in INR given to the related party carries interest rate of 10.25% (March 31, 2016 : 10.25% & April 1, 2015 : 10.75% - 11%).

f Ooiazan:a with related parties
The: Company has not provided any commitment to the related party as at March 31, 2017 (March 31, 2016: Rs.Nil and April [, 2015: Rs.Nil)




i The Anup Engineering Limited:
- Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 30 : Earning per share

Earing per share (Basic and Diluted)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

318,289,519 234,332,263

Total no. of equity shares at the end of the %om.n 13,600,000 13,600,000
Weighted average number of equity shares

For basic EPS : 13,600,000 13,600,000

For diluted EPS 13,600,000 13,600,000

Neominal value of equity shares 10 10

Basic earning per share 23.40 17.23

. Diluted earning per share 23.40 17.23 _

Weighted average ==E_o_2. of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 13,600,000 13,600,000

- Effect of dilution: Share options - -

. Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 13,600,000 13,600,000

Note 31 : Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Amount spent during the year on:

Activities:

m The Company is required to spend Rs. 55,62,560 (Previous Year Rs. 35,00,000) on CSR activities.
b. _

o

@_

Construction/acquisition of any asset
Contribution to various Trusts / NGOs / Socig
,P.mgommm and utilization thereon :

5,562,560.00

5,562,560.00 |

3,500,000.00

- 3,500,000.00

A
me




. Notes to the Finaricial Statéments '

" The managemen assessed that fair values for loan from holding compay wnuld approximate thenrcan'ymg values, ThlS is. due to the interest rates for

TFhe Anup Engineering Lintited

Naote 32 : Fair value disclosures for financil assets and financial linbilities

Thie management assesséd that the fair vaiues of cash and cash equivalems trade receivables, other financial assets and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shoit-term maturities of*

these instruments.
similar loan have not changed significantly as at March 31,

2017, 2016 and April 1, 2015 compared to the interest rates at which such Ioau have been availed.

Financial liahilitics
Borrowings
Total

38,902,960 16.1,'62],213 8,821,417 38,992,960 16(,621,218 8,821,417

38,992,960 161,621,218 8,821,417 38,952,960 161,621,218 8821417

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other barik balances, trade receivables, other current financial assets znd wade payables approximate their camying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments. . .

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could bé exchanged in a current transaction between witling parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used e estimate the fair values .

" The fair value of barrowings and other financial fiabilities is calcutated by discounting firize cash flows using rates currently avaitable for debts on similar erns, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Company has determined that market participants would take into aceount when pricing the investments.

No:e 33 Fair value h:crarchy
The Foiluwmg table provides the fair value measirement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities

b s
As at March 31,2017

Liabilities disclosed at fair value

Borrowings March 31,2047 38,992 960 - 38,992,960 -
- As at March 31, 2016
Liabilities disclosed at fair value -

Borrowings March 31, 2016 161,621,218 - 161,621,218

As at April [, 2015
Liabilities disclosed at fair value

Borrowings April 01, 2015 8,821,417 - 5,821,417 -




The Anup Enginecring Limiterd
Notes to 1he Financial Sitements

Note 34 : Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Compasy s pri 1 ial liabitities, prisc b ings and trade & other payables. The main parpose of these financial Tabilities is 1o finance the Compahy s opcraticns and lo support
its pperations. The Company™s principal financial assets include foans given, trade and other receivables and cash & short-term deposits that derive direetly from its operalions.

The Company's aclivitics expose it 1o marke? zisk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In order 10 minimisc sny adverse effects on the financicl performance of the campany, the Company’s sisk
management is casried ost by a Treasury depastment under policics approved by the Board of dirsclozs. Company’s treasury identifics and cvaluates financizt risks in close co-operation with the
Company's operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk as well as palicics covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk. intercst rate tisk, credit risk

and invesiment of excess Equidity.

Market righ
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Mows of a Bnancial instrument will Huctuaic because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three 1ypes of risk: interest rte risk,

cumency risk and ather price risk, such as equity price Tisk and commodity risk. Financial instsments aflected by macket risk include tesde and other Teccivable and made and other payables.

Withia the various methodotogies 1o analyse and manage risk, Company has impkementcd a system based on “sensilivity analysis” on symmerric basis. This tool caables the risk managers to identify
il risk position of the catities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximale quantification of he exposure in the event 1hat cortain specilied parameters werc 10 be met under 2 speeilic sct of
assumptions. The risk estimates provided here assume:

+ a simultancous. paralle] foreign exchange wtes shifl in which the INR appreciates / depeeciates against alt ics by 2%

The polential cconamic impact, due (o these jons, is based on the of adverse f inverse market conditions and reflects estimated changes resulting from the sensitivity anglysis.
Actuzd results that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may diller materislly from these estimates dug fo actuat developments in the global [inanciat markets.

The aralyses exclude the impact of movements in markei varisbics om; the carmying values of gramiy, pension and ather post-tetirement ebligations and provisions.

Tie folowing assumption has been made in calculaling the-seasitivity analyses: .
- The sensitivity of the relevant ssatement of profit o loss item is the effect ‘of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based or the financial asseis and financial liabilitics held at

Narch 31, 2017, March 3L, 2056 and April §, 2015,

Fureign carcency risk )
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the faic value ar future cash Slows of an axposure will fluctunte because of changes in Foreignexchange raies. The Corepany ransacts business in local qumency
and in forcign cumency. primasily in USD. The Company has oblained forcign currency loans and has lereign currency wade payables and receivables ele. and is, therefore, exposed to foreign

exchange risk. The Comupany may use forward contracts, forcign cxchange oplions gr currency swaps towards hedging csk resulting from changesand 1 in {oreig:
These forcign exchange contracts, carried al fair value, may Tave varying maturilics varying depending upon the primary host contract Tequi and risk nl strategy of the pany.

‘”[“hc Company NIanAges its Foreipn curmrency ¢disk by hedging appropriate porentape of its fercign Cutrency cXpesuee, as approved by Board as por established risk maragement policy. Détails of the
hedge & unhedyed position of the Company given in Noig ne.2

Forcign carrency scasitivity

The following 1abics demonstrate the seasitivity to @ reasonably possivle change in USE and EUR rates 1o (ke functiogal curzency of respective eatity, with all otber variables held constonl. The
Company’s expasure to Torcign currency changes for all other cumencies is ol
Tiabilines.

| materiat. The impact on the Company's profit before lax is due 1o changes ir the fsir value of monelary assels and

March 31,2017 +2% 1,299,821
-I% ~2,289821

March 31,2016 +2% 1515978
-1% -1,515978

April 1, 2815 2% -25,807
2% 25807

March 31, 2017 +2% 462,129
1% 462119
March 3§, 206 2% -
2% -
April 1,218 2% 32,151
2% : 32351
The movementin the pre-tax effectis a resull of o chiange in the fair valuc of Bnancial ing not designated in a hedperelationship. Alhouph the financial i have not been designated
in a hedpe rolakionship, they act a3 an economic hedge and will ofTser the underlying Lransactions whei they aceur.
(b} Credit risk
Credit risk is the sisk That a will not meet its ebligations under a finencisl instrument or cusiomer contract, [cading to a financial [oss. The Company is exposed 10 eredit risk from ils

operating activities primarily trads; receivables} and from its financing activitics, inclading deposits with barks, foreign cxchange transactinns and other nancial instruments.

/‘ﬁ
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Treude receivables .

Customer credit sisk is managed by each business unil subject o the Company s ostablished policy, procedures and control refating 1o credil rigk Trade reecivables arc pon-
interest bearing and are genecally on 30 days 10 43 days credit term. Credit fimits arc estblished for afl customers based on interal rting criteria, Quistanding customer receivables are regularly
1ly covered by letters of eredit The Conipany has no conceatration of czedit zisk as the customer base is widcly distributed both

4 and any shi {6 major are g
ceonomnically and geographically.
An impai analysis is perli dat each reponting dats on an individual basis for razjor clients. In sddition, a large number of miinor receivables are grouped into homogeneus groups and
asscssed For invpai lleetively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical dar. The maximum exposurs to credid risk at the ceporting date js the camrying value of each class of

Tow, as ils

financiat ussets disclossd in Note 8.1, The Company does nol seld collatcral as seenrity, The Company evatuates the concentralion of risk wilh respeet to tade
are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markcls.

" Financial instruments and cash deposits

Cradit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Campany’s treasury deparment in accordance +with the Companys palicy. Invesunents of surplus Fends are made only with appraved
ini hreshold i under the v risk peocess. The Company monitoss the ratings, credit spreads and financiat strength of its

counterpanies who meets the g :
es Based on ils on-going risk, the groap adjusts ils eposure 1o various counterpantics. The Company's maximum cxposore 10 credit risk for the compencntsof

of
the Balanee sheel as af March 31, 2017, March 31, 201 6 & Apri! |, 2015 is the carrying amounnt a5 disclosed in Note 8.2 & Note 8.3,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meelits present and furure cash and collateral obligations \ithoul incurring unacecptable losses. The Company's abjective is 1o, al 21l
mum levels of liquidity 1o meet its ¢ash and collateral requircments. The Company clesely monitors its liquidity position and deploys & rebust cash management system, It

times maintain opti
intaing ad sources of ineluding bilaterat Ioans, debt and overdraft fzom both domesticand internationa} banks at an optimised cost. {1 alsa enjoys strong aceess o domestic capital

markets acTess equity.

“The table below swmmarises
P

PR

Year ended Manch 31,

Interest bearing borrowings 3B.992.950
Trade paysbles - 144,764,442 43,805.977
Oller financicl liabilitics 1,601,181
Derivatives -
-ﬂla’f.lxﬂ 104,764,442 43805977
Yearcaded March 31, 2016
. Interest bearing borrowings 161,621,218
Trade payables - 100812311 484577
Other Enancial Habidilics 1.398,958
Derivatives -
: 100,812 311 18,457,778
Year ended Aprit 1, 203
Interest bearing borrowings 8974123
Trade paysbles - £9,954.793 7,276,756
Other financiat [abilities 1.547.485
Derivatives -
10,521.6U8 69,954,793 7,276.756

Natg 35 : Cupital management
For the puzpose of the Company s capital managentent, capi
the Company’'s copital management is 10 ensure that it maintains an ¢

I includes issued equity capi! and all other equity reserves attributable to the cquiy holders of the Cempany, The primary ebjective of
fFicient capital struicture and healthy capital raties in order to support its business and maximisc sharcholder value.

ditions or its business requi To aintain of adjusl the capital sinuciure, the
shares. The Compaity monitars capilal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total

The Company manages its capital sireture and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
Company raay adjust the dividerd payment (o sharcholders. return capitad to sharcholders or issuc new

capital plus net debt. The Campany includes within not debt, interest bearing toans and borie wings less cash and short-term deposits (including ather bank balance).

Tnigsést-bearing loans and bomewings 32,992,960 161,621,218 8974,123
{Note 13)
Less: cash and cash equivalent (16217381} {45.127.703) {57,502,370)
{incleding other bank balance) (Note
7 .
Ned defat 22,075,579 116,543,515 (8R528,247)
Equity share capital (Note 11) 136,000L0{0 34.000.000 34,060,000
Other cquity (Note 12} 1.550.645.075 1.334.619,784 1,100,365,388
Touol capital 1,686,615,0873 {36%,619,789 1,134,365,388
Capital and net debt L 748,721 654 1,485.213,304 1,645,837,140
Gearing ratio 1.29% 7.85% R A6%

a2ims o ensure that it meets financial attached to the interesi-bearing loans and

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things,
‘bomrawings that definc capitaf structure Tequirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the
\he financia! covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the curcent period.

ank to immediately call loans and borrowings, There have been ng breaches in

No changes were made in the objectives, policics or processes for managing capital during ik years ended March 3%, 2017, March 31, 2016 and Aprif 1. 2015,

Under the terms of the major borrowing Eacilitics, the Company has complied with the requircd financial covenanls thrpugh out the reporting periods.

MD
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The Anup Enginéering Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 36 : Firs:- time adoption of Ind AS

_ These financial staterments, for the year ended Maych 31, 2017, are the first annual Thd AS financial statements, the Company has prepared in accordance with
Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which Sgmply with Ind AS applicable for perods ending on March 31, 2017, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. En preparing these
financial statements, the Company’s apening balance sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2015, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains
the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April I, 2015 and the
previously published Indizn GAAP firancial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016. . .

Exemptions applied
Ind AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards™ sliows first-time adopter certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

Ind AS optional exemptions

1 Deemed cost
Ind AS 101 permits a a first time adopter to elect to measure an iter af property, plant ard equipment at the transitiod to ind A5 at its fair value and use that
Fair value s its deemed cost at that date. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38. ‘

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment a2 fair vatue & intangible assets at previous GAAP carrying value
on the date of transition to Tnd AS and used those value as deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets respectively,

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

1 Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accardance with
previous GAAP, unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in eror,

“Ind AS estimates as at Aprif 1, 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in the conformity with previous GAAP .
‘The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at April 1, 2015, the date of tansition to Ind AS
and as of March 31, 2016.

2 Classification and measurement of financial assets }
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to sssess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of

transition.to Ind AS.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and fnd AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprekensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the
reconciliations from previous GAAP o Ind AS: :

Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS
1. Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2016 & April 1, 2015
Amount in Rs.)

L e T R I ASECNEGR AR e EADHELAOINEE
Equity under previous GAAP ] 910,823,635 670,688,621
Impact of fair valuation of Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets i 607,583,566 613,944,526
Tax impact on lnd AS adjustments il B (148,066,358} . {150,267,75%)
Equity as per Ind AS 1,370,340,843 1,134,365,388

2. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2016
{Amount in Rs.)

W “.,_ .. S o ; _;"k) "’FE
Profit after tax as per previous GAA. 240,135,014
Impact on depreciation an account of fair valuation of Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets i {6,360,950)
Tax on depreciation on account of fair vatuation ji 2,160,194
Re-classification of re-measurement gains / {losses) on defined benefit plans to OCI iii 119,069
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 236,053,317
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

Re-mensurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax} il (77,862)
Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS, net of tax 235,975,455

Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1,2015 and March 31, 2016 and total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31,2016

i. Fair Valuation of Property, plant and equipment & Entangible assets
The Company has elected 1o measure all items of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) at fair value at the date of transition to Ind AS and to use the fair value
5 deemed cost on the date of transition. The resulting change has been adjusted in retained camings. Change in depreciation & amortisation of the subsequent
period due to fair valuation of items of PPE have been recognised in statement of profi & loss. The following table summarizes the agpregate fair value and
adjustment to the camrying amount reported under previoias GAAP for items of PPE assets for which fair value measurement is adopted:

b




R :
Property, ptant and equip

Land Freehald 217,000 572,208 . 355,208
Land Lease hold 137,547 491,757,905 491,620,358
Building . 91,342,133 147,212,354 53,870,221
Plant & Equipntents 270,946,389 330,684,168 | 59,737,779

* i, Tax impacts on Ind AS adjustments ’
The impact of transition adjustments together with Ind AS mandate of using balance sheet approach {against profit and loss approach under previous GAAP)
for computation of deferred tax has resuited in adjustment to Reserves, with consequential impact in the subsequent periods to the Statement of profit and loss

or other comprehensive income, as the case may be.

iii. Re-measurement gain / loss on defined benefit plan

Under Ind AS, re-measurement i.e. actuarial gain loss and the return o plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defined
benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these re-imeasurement were forming part of
the profit or loss for the year, As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended on March 31, 2016 increased by Rs.,19,069, There is no impact on the

total equity as at March 31, 2016,

iv. Other comprehensive income _

Under Ind AS, ali items of income and expense recognised in a period should be incfuded i profit or loss for the period, uniess a standard requires or permits
otherwise. Izemn of income and expense that are not recognised in profi{ or loss but are shown in the Statement of profit and loss as "other comprehensive
income” includes re-measurement of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

v. Retained earnings
Retzined earnings as at Aprii |, 2015 has been adjusted consequent to the abave Ind AS transition adjustments.

vi. Classification & Presentation

i. Excise duty '
Under the previous GAAP, sale of goods was presented as net of excise duty. Under ind AS, reveriue from sale of products is presented inclusive of excise
duty. The excise duty paid an sale of products is separately presented on the face of statement of profit and loss 23 a part of expense. Thus sale of goods under

Ind AS has increased by Rs.14,78.98,906 with a corresponding increase in other expense.

ii. Statement of cash flows
The impact of transition from previous GAAP to lnd AS on the statement of cash flows is due to various rectassification adjustments recorded under Ind AS in

Balance sheet and Statement of profit and loss and difference in the definition of cash and cash equivalents under these two GAAPs like bank averdraft.

Note 37 : Standards issued but not yet effective
The standard issued, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statemients is disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt

Amendment to lad AS 7:
The amendment to Ind AS 7 requizes the entities to provide disctosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes,
suggesting inclusion of % reconciliation between the opening and closing batances in the balance sheet for liabilities asising from
financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The effect on the financiak st is being evaluated by the Company.

s




__The Anup Engineering Limited

Note 38 : Operating segment
The Company's business activity falls within a

Accordingly the Company is a single segment company in accord

Geographical segment :
Geographical segment is considered

ance with Ind AS 108

based on sales within India and rest of the world.

single primary business segient of Engineering goods.
"Operating Segment”.

Amount in Rs.

| Paiticuiars March 31,2017 March 31,2016
Segment Revenue*
a} In India 1.412,818,465 1,208,508,017
b) Rest of the world 380,731,359 236,797,087
Total Sales 1,793,549,824 1,445,305,104
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets**
a) In India 2,045,764,020 1,255,212,614
b) Rest of the world 144,692,168 75,798,883
Total 2,190,456,188 1,936,874,010
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Curvent Assets**(@) :

‘|2) In India : 823,730,984 815,546,993
b) Rest of the world - -
Total 823,730,984 815,546,993

* Based on focation of Customers
*= Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets.

Note 39 : Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination notes as defined in MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E}

dated March 31, 2017 on the details of Specified
to December 30, 2016, the denomination wise SBNs and other nof

tes as per notification is given below:

Bank Notes (SBNs) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016

Amount in Rs.

;Pa-r__ﬁ'c'u__l:(f 5 .

Closing cash balance as on November 8, 2016 50,000 14,008 64,008
() Permitted Receipts - 100,517 100,517
() Permitted Payments - 51,710 51,710
(-) Amourit deposited in Banks 50,000 50,000
Closing cash balance as on December 30, 2016 - 62,815 62,815

*For the purposes of 1his clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the

Inddia, Minisiry of Finance, Department of Economic Affeirs number 8.0. 3407(E). dated November 8, 201 4.

40 Regroupcd, Recast, Reclassified

Figures of the earlier year have been regrouped or reclassified to.c

Governnent of

onform te Ind AS presentation requirements.




